
tJNIT"~1) NATIONS

General.Assembly
"'()l~TY·"'()URTH SESSION

O/ficial Records

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 3rd MEETING

Chairmanl Mr. KABORE (Burkina ralo)

CONTENTS

THIRD COMMITTEE
3rd me.ting

held on
Mondav, 9 October 1989

at 3 p.m.
New York

STATEM~NT BY MR. ANTOINE BLANCA, DIRECTOR-GENERAL rOR DEVELOPMENT AND INTERNATIONAL
ECuNOMIC CO-OPERATION

AGE~DA ITEM 891 IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PROGRAl~E or ACTION FOR THE SECOND DECADE TO
COMBAT RACISM AND RACIAL DISCRIMINATION

AGENDA ITEM 1001 ELIMINATION or ALL rORMS OF RACIAL DISCRIMINATION

AGENDA ITEM 1051 IMPORTANCE or THE UNIVERSAL REALIZATION OF THE RIGHT OF PEOPLES
TO SELF-DETERMINATION AND OF THE SPEEDY GRANTING OF INDEPENDENCE TO COLONIAL
COUNTRIES AND PEOPLES FOR THE EFFECTIVE GUARANTEE AND OBSERVANCE OF HUMAN RIGHTS

TI", r~,llnll' ,ul>II',llo"lIrr~,I\ll1l

('"",,, .,,'11\ ,hllufll hl' "'Ill 1.lIlIn Ih~ ,1jl.lll1tUf\· of i1111~111t>~r Ilf 11\l' ,kkll,ll'"11 l"I'II.-I'II\l',1
\1",11"" (1/11' \I n'k "I/hl' d<lIl"'ll'ul'/"",I/I"" hi 111l' l'I\1~f Illlh~ (11111"1011 Rl'l'llrll' blllillll S,'dll'lI. RIlIlI1lIJ(': '~{I.

~ lll\lU,'d N1111l1n, !'lil/il l ilnd mn1tpOrilh.'d 10 a n'p~ ollhl.1 n.'\.'nrtl

('orn,'\,(lt1l1\ \\ III ht' l"Ul'tllll1l'l 1Ill' ,'lid 01 Ill\' '"'\\ll1ll. III il ""1'i1rilh' 1,."'. f1~\'lldlll11 for l,.'drh l \lIHI1\1lh.'\'

89-56170 16388 (E)

Distr. GENERAL
A/C.3/44/SR.3
20 October 1989
ENGLISH
ORIGINALI SPANISH

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC. 3/44/8R. 3
English
Page 2

The meeting wa, callld to ordlr at 3.15 p.m.

STATEMENT BY MR. ANTOINE BLANCA, DIRECTOR-GENERAL FOR DEVELOPMENT AND INTERNATIONAL
ECONOMIC CO-OPERATION

1. Mr. BLAHCA (Director-Oenlral for Dlvelopment and International Economic
Co-operation) said that the role of the Third Committee was especially important as
various social i,sues figured pre-eminently in the present day overall policy
debate. The improvement of social conditions had been slowed down or reversed in
the 1980s in a large number of countrie., in particular in Africa and Latin
America. One need not go far in the search of evidence. When average incomes
declinld, and the distribution of incoml remained the same, the number of people
living in extreme povlrty was bound to incrlase. Average incumes in Africa, for
instance, were now some 40 per cent lowlr than they were at the beginning of the
decade and back to levels that had blen reached in the beginning of the 1970s. In
Latin America they were 14 per cent lowlr, back to levels that had been attained in
the late 1970s. Only a huge - and unimaginable - redistribution of income (and
bUdget resources) towards the poorest slgments in .ociety could have buffered the
impact on them of such a decline.

2. Today it was recognilod not only in the United Nations but also in the
financial multilateral institutions that structural adjustment programmes had to
encompass social and diltributional que.tionl al Will (and not only the tl~geting

of macroeconomic variables). It was asserted that it was unacceptable to wait for
growth alone to reduce poverty. And it wa. true that in a few recent instances
adjustm~nt programmes had included compensatory measures in order to soften the
impact on poverty-stricken groups of population. But how much could luch measures
achieve against the fall-out of a 40 per cent reduction in average incomes?
Without a growth-oriented approach, compensatory mealures often were like a drop in
the ocean.

3. In the pre~ent period of prolonged economic decline for so many developing
countries it had not always been possible to distinguish precisely between the
social damages from the decline and the social c·,sts of adjustment programmes that
had usually been implemented in a context of grave balance-of-payment
difficulties. The usual components of adjustment programmes - currency
devaluation, squeeze on credit, price decontrol, elimination of many public
subsidies, a~d other measures to reduce the budget deficit - in several instances
brought unbearable social costs. The poorer segments of the populations suffered
directly from reduced incomes and increased prices for necessities, and receding
prospects of access to adequate ~ublic social services. As was well known, in some
cases, the resulting social tension mounted to the point of explosion.

4. The
With tax
cut back
charging
society.

picture had become a familiar one in the indebted developing countries.
revenues being redirected to service external dabt, Governments had either
on social services or they had made efforts to maintain services by
them, which had been to the detriment, usually. of the weakest segments of

As was well known, in the developing world the provision of social

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC.3/44/SR.3
EngliHh
Page 3

(Mr....JUan.c.a)

servic,s had reached a far smaller share or the population than in developud
countries. Thus, government budgets in developing countries were confronted with
much larger unmet requirements. That was even more true of the least developed
among them, where large portions of the population lived in absolute poverty. In
those conditions, the social costs of adjustment could become dangerously higl1.

5. The impact on the development budget had in general been even more SAvera. In
trimming public expenditures, developing countries had been first to cut
investment. The reduction or investment in so many developing countries had
obviously hurt their long-term development prospects.

6. The halt or even reversal in social progress in Africa and Latin America waR
very distressing. By comparison, Asia had been hailed as the success story of the
19801. But satisfaction with real accomplishments in that region could not erase
the magnitude of all that was left to be done. Asia was still the home oC for more
than half of all the people of the world living in extreme poverty.

7. The improvement of standards of living in develnping countries would be
essential also to stop the local degradation of the environment. Environmentul
issues were very diverse and the causes of environmental destl"Uctioll had to bn
ascertained in each case. But clearly in many developing countrieH poverty WilS A

major source of local degradation of the environment.

8. It was difficult to speak in specific terms o! social problem~ becaul>e Lhey
were entangled with economic problems. Such an entanglement was even morp. p.vinent
in times of diffiCUlty. Practical or institutional separations did not deny,
however, the interaction of social and economic policies and the need for R

multidisciplinary approach to development. They pointed to the 11igh signi!icance
of tight co-op.aration between the Thh'd and Second Commit.tees and hetwp.en t.he
various parts of the Secretariat. In its last sessions, the Economic And Social
Council had emphasized the need Cor an integrated approach to development. lip
recalled Coutlcil resolution 1989/113 which referred to the interrelationship
between economic and social factors fOI" development. He also reren-ed t.u Cuulldl
resolution 1989/120 on development of human resources and resoluUon ltlaCl/!}!i on the
social dimension of the 1nternational Strategy for the FOllrth Un i.t Nl Niltic.mB
Development Decade.

9. With particular re!erence to the Strategy, there wa~ a brunclly bi:wed C\YIHemt~llt

that the central concern must be the revitalization of growth. After Hight ynnrH
oC growth in the industrialized world, there was a wave of optimism in some
circles. The most enthusiastic believed that the 1990s could we~l be n new gulden
age for the developed wurld. Such optimism must be accompanied by blrengt.hen~d

solidarity and the resolve to bring back growth and development. 1.0 thoHe part:; o(
the world that did not have the least benefit from the growth oJ pAst YAD!S. If
such a goal was not achieved, many countries might come to feel I.hnl. ouly the
negative f~ce of interdependence was being shown to them.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.3
English
Page 4

(M(.Blcmca)

10. Beyond the oV3rall goal of creating 8 framework for growth find development,
there was ftlso a broad consensus that the Strategl should emphasize the need to
improve the social situation, in particular of the developing countrieA, a concept
derived from Council reaolution 1989/55. At the same time, t.ho St.l"litegy should
highlight the eradication of poverty and hunger, give 8 central place to human
development, and support the advancement of women, social integration and the
participation in development of all segments of society. The pursuit of social
goals would be eased by a better understanding of the interactions between souial
and economic policies. It was not just that economic policies had by necessity
social consequences. The choice of certain economic policies hAd represented
de fftc.t.o at. the same time the choice of an implici t social policy, both at nal.ional
and international level. Thus the challenge before the authors of th.' future
strategy would be the true weight given to its different goals ~nd policIes to
reach them.

11. The battle against drug abuse and drug traffic was now being given high
priority by the international community and thus in the work of the present session
of the General Assembly and oC the Third Committee. Drugs were fl Boci"l plague
causing ravage both in developed and developing countries. It was estimated that
the amounts involved in .international .illicit drug trafficking wara highAr thAn the
value of international trade in oil. For some developing countries the traffic
provided at timas the only means oC life for parts of the rurAl populAtion Bnd an
important source of hard currency. Thus, countries now in the front lino of the
bAttle AgAinst drugs needed all the international s~pport thbt ~ould be mllstared,
including the support that would provide alterative export earnings. It would be a
sad recoru for inte national solidarity and for consistency in matterr. of
international policy if the outside help given to a countt:y t.o fight illiclit drug
trHrric were allowed to be drained completely by the deterioration of the tflrms of
trade in its licit trAffic.

12. 'fhe Unit.ed Nation·) was the fOrllm in which B.ll t.he int.ernational aspecltH of the
drug scourge could pe addressAd. It WBA to be hoped that all member countrifls
would acceda to the 1988 Unit.ed Nat.ions Convention Against. Ill1c:J.t. '.rrnfrlc .in
Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances. At the same time, the reduction of
demand COL' drugs must be tackled and emphasiR must be put on prfwent:..lll~1 c1Cldicl.ion
and on treatmont and rohabilitation.

13. There wns nnother nrea of social concern, where progress ill mnny developing
countr ies seemed t.o have been checked by the development c:tisis of I.he 1980s. 'fhe
mOllt. rocent update of t.he Unitod Nations WQrltl SurvoYQo. t.he Rolo o( Womon In
Dove19~llJ.ont hnd nhown that. t.he economic crisir. affoc:t.ed (~(!rti1in flOCI.Ol'/; in
pnrt: leu1 or. Typically, st.i 11, in countr ie:; where school nnrolmont had stngnlll.ed in
the 19001; the slow-down had been more marked in the case o( girlB thun of bOyH. 1n
tqlJO, L/lH tJn.it.ed NI'\t:.iolll; was HchfH.luled \.0 (:arry out. R mid-Unm I t!vJHw of
t.he implemontation o[ t.he Forwatd looking Stratogian for the Advnncomont of Womon
to t.hl'! Yent· 2000. That. would provide a good opport.unit.y to milk,·! il t.l~lly of
nc1vonc:cs nnd failurel; in t.he campaign for women I s equnlit.y nnd pnrUcipat.ion during

/, ..
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC. 3/44/SR. 3
English
Page 5

(Mr..L_IU.an.c.~ )

the difficult 1980s, and would allow all States to redef!ne their commitment to the
changes still needed to promote greater participRtion by women i,l the economy and
in society.

14. In part XIII of his most recent report on the work of the UrgAnizAtion
(Al44/l" the Secretary-General 8aid that "the intel·naU.onalizal.lllll o[ certt'llll
major social issues can no longer be discounted", and stressed thEI need [or common
strategies to deal with them. A corpus or internatio~al1y agreed plana of act.ion
and guidelines supplying ;he elements of a world social strategy WAR already jn
existence; the guiding pllnciples (or welf~re policies, the Nairubi strategjea for
the advancement of wome.'1, the world-wida agreements on yout.h, the c1isablfld nnd the
elderly, the results of the International Conference on Dru~ Abuu~ and IlliciL
Trafficking, and the recommendations of the United NAtions congr~Rs~R nn the
prevention of crime and treatment of offenders. Other agr~em8ntB might be adopted
on children and migrant workers. One landmark agreement was the 1>ec181 <\I:ion on
Social Progress and Development (1969), whose twenty-fifth anniversary would be
marked by special meeting oC the GenerAl Assembly in December. ThE! DEH~l13raU(Jn was
an expression of faith in the democratic ideal and nIl thnt thRt impli~d,

nationally and internationally. I t was a datal led document which could 8till
provide a leSion in the importance of being able t.o dream. In All Are which
demanded realism it was necesse~l to dre8lll, ir only III little, in (.Il"del to lHUTllllon up
the stren0th to contribute to the building of A bAtter world.

AGENDA ITEM 891 IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PROGRAMME OF ACTION FOR THE SECOND DECADE TO
COMBAT RACISM AND RACIAL DISCRIMINATION (Al44/240, 1\1441409-5/20'143 and Corr. J.
and 2, A/44/574, 575, 595; A/C.3/44/L.3; E/1989/42 and AddE.1-4)

AGENDA ITEM 100: ELIMINATION OF ALL FORMS OF RACIAL DISCRIMINATION (A/44/IR, 171,
190 and Corr.l, 238 and Corr.l, 240, 271 and Corr.l, 310, 327, 330 and Corr.!, 336,
342, 346, 348, 360, A/44/395-E/1989/128, A/44/40~, 409 and Corl'.] ond 2, 411, 412,
442 and 593)

AGENDA ITEM 105: IMPORTANCE OF THE UNIVERSAL REALIZATION OF THF. RIGHT OF PEOPLES
TO SELF-DETERMINATION AND OF THE SPEEDY GRANTING OF INDEPEN~ENCE '1'0 COLONIAL
COUNTRIES ANO PEOPLES FOR THE EFFECTIVE GtJAR~.NTEE ANn OBSERVANCF. C1F HUMAN RTGJlTR
(A/44/526 and 548)

15. Mr •. NlAMe:KYE; (Deputy Director, Centre fol' Hwnan rHghtl3), spanking on bQhuH of
Mr. Jan Martenson, Under-Secretary-General for Humall Rights, i nt.n.l(llll:fH.\ nyemli1
items 89, 100 and 105, saying that the three were clos~ly relntnd.

16. On the SUbject of item R9, he said thAt the prflvention ol diHcrimillAtion waR
of paramount importance to the international community. Hacit:illl Well; OIlE' uf t1w must
virulent cancers to attack mankind, And the internationnl c:omrnull.i Ly c:oll.ltl 1I0t-.

tolerate it without risk to the peace and humon rights of everyone o( itr. members.

17. The drafters of the United Nations Chart.er had been fully aWcUI1 01 the dilngers
of racism which, in the years befor~ The Second World War, hRd n!(·whecl RI\

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.3
English
Page 6

(Mr.•._.Ny.AITll.ky.)

unimaginable level of horror. The most strikin~ ex~~ple of racism and I'acial
discrimination in modern times was the .opor.t.ho_1.d system in South Africa, where Cl

long period of discrimination had spawned a bitter cycle of conflict, power and
death. It was, however, 'encouraging that efforts by the United Nations generally
and the Secretary-General in particular had reviv~d the peace procoss in southern
Africa where, with support from the international community, preparations were
being made for elections for Namibian independence.

18. In 1973, the General Assembly had proclaimed the 10 yeafS from 1973 to 1983
the United Nations Decade to Combat Racism and Racial Discrimination. The first
World Conference to Combat Racism and Racial Discrimination had been held halfway
through that period and the Second World Conference in 1983. As a result of the
Second Conference, the General Assembly had proclaimed the period from 1983 to 1993
the Second Decade, he outlined its main objectives. With those objectives iu view,
the General Assembly had approved a broad programme of activities backed up by
detailed plans of action for the periods 1985-1989 and 1990-1993.

19. The elimination of apjlrt-helel was one of the main objectives oC the Second
Decade. The body mandated to lead the campaign against apartheid was the Spe~ial

Committee against AP~rth~i~. In addition, the Commission on Human Rights and
almost all the other hwnan rights bodies of the United Nations had taken Cirm
stands against op.or.thl.id.

20. The importance of co-ordinating the many activities of United Nations bodies
and organizations under the Programme of Action for the Second Dec~de had been
recognized by tJle General Assembly in resolution 42/47. The Socretary-General
fully shared the conceru of the Goneral Assembly in that regard, and in
October 1987 had requested Mr. Martenson to take charge of the cu-ordination of the
Decade. The Co-ordinator had taken a number of steps to improvo contacts between
various bodies and organizations. During the past year he had r~18ed the
implementation of the Programme of Action for the Decade with the executive heads
of t.he specialized agencies, at the Geneva session of the Aclmini!it.I·ative Committee
on Co-ordination, in order to mobilize the resourcen of ~he entire United Nations
Rystem in the fight against ra~is~.

21. The import.ant contributiou made by non-goverrunental urganizat.i vu!> hEtd been
recogl'izecl by All Un! ted Nations bodies and had been Idnglec1 out. hy t.hn Panfllolll
AGBembly in numerous resolutions. The United Nations, in turn, cnnt.ri.buted
net i vp.l y too meetings and semi.nars organized by non-governmentR 1 o,-gnni ?Cltions on
the fight against racism and racial discrimination.

22. !mother priority area was the strengt.hening of public inforrnHt,ioll rwtiviUos
in orc1or to mnkf! known the p"rt. plRyP.d by the Uni ted Nflt.i nnR in UIf' fight. ago i m;t.
racism. The launching of the World Public Information Cnmpaign on Human Hight.s by
the General Assembly was giving new impetus to efforts by the Utllted Nations Lo
combat. discrimination and carry on its Cight against racimn. III i'H:I.ivlties related
·.0 the fortieth anniversary oC the Universal Declaration or Humi\u Rlght.£;, gl'eat
importancE! had been given to the objer:t.ivel'i and purposes of the Upcnd£!. As

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.3
English
Page

(Mr. NYIm.ky.)

Co-ordinator, Mr. Mart.n.on had .tr••••d the importanc. of m••ting r.gularly with
the media, for nxampl., in conn.ction with the Int.rnational Day for the
Elimination of Racial Di.crimination, h. had m.t journali.t. to go ov.r r.c.nt
developm.nt. in the campaign against racism.

23. In ord.r to co-ordinat. all the international activiti.s under the Second
Decad.. the G.n.ral Ass.mbly had r.qu.st.d the S.cr.tary-G.n.ral to hold a global
consultation on racial discrimination involving r.pr.s.ntativ.s of the Unit.d
Nations syst.m, r.gional int.rgov.rnm.ntal orqanizations and int.r••t.d
non-gov.rnmental organizations in consultativ\~ status. The Global Con.ultation had
be.n h.ld in Gen.va in Octob.r 1988. In January 1989 the C.ntr. for Human Rights
had held a s.minar in G.n.va on the .ff.ct. of racism and racial discrimination on
economic and social r.lations b.tw••n indig.nou. p.opl•• and Stat•• , a
r.pr•••ntativ. of an indig.nou. community had b••n .l.ct.d Rapport.ur. In
Sept.mber, in co-operation with the Gre.k Governm.nt, the C.ntre had organized an
international I.minar in Ath.ns on cultural dialogue betw••n migrant work.rs' home
and host countri.s. Finally, it plann.d to off.r a practical cour.e in .arly 1990
on the political, hi.to~~cal, .conomic, locial and cultural factor. contributing to
raci.m, racial discrimination and aparth.id.

24. In order to impl.m.nt the obj.ctiv.s of the D.cade, the int.rnational
community had b••n carrying out a wide rang. of activiti•• , which should b.
continued with incr.a.ing vigilanc. and .ff.ctiv.n.... It might b. u.eful in the
future to include activiti•• intend.d to .tr.ngth.n national legi.lation bnd
institutions for the pr.v.ntion of racism and the promotion of racial harmony, to
prepare model legislative texts combating discrimination which could b. pr.sented
by interested Governm.nts to their Parliaments, and to provide advisory services to
assist Government. in int.grating mod.l norms into their constitutions, training
courses on international anti-discrimination norms "lnd information materials on
basic human rights.

25. He called attention t~ some of the docum.n~J submitted to the Committee in
connection with the it.m before it which provided information on activities related
to the Decade and noted that the capacity to implement those activities depended
upon the adequacy of the resources made available for that purpose by Member States.

26. Noting the documents submitted to the Committee in connection with agenda
item 100, he said it was encouraging that in the current year, which marked the
entry into force of the International Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of
Racial Discrimination, the number of States parties to the Convention had risen to
128, which was the high.st number of States parties to any international human
rights instrument. On the other hand, it was regrettable that only 14 States
parties had made the Declaration provided for in article 14 of the Convention. It
was to be hoped that the General Assembly would continue to urge the States parties
which had not yet done so to accept article 14 and thereby to contribute to the
effective implementation of the Convention.

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.3
English
Page 8

(Mr. Nyamekye)

27. The International Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Racial
Discrimination represented the most comprehensive United Nations instrument
regarding discrimination on the grounds of race, colour or national or ethnic
origin. It was therefore regrettable that the important work of the Committee on
the Elimination of Racial Discrimination, which was to examine the measures adopted
by the 128 States parties to give effect to the provisions of the Convention, had
again been impaired, for the fourth consecutive year, by financial difficulties
which affected its normal functioning. Those difficulties were a consequence of
the non-payment by several States parties of their assessed contributions under the
Convention. It had consequently been necessary to cancel the spring session of the
Committee, which was to have met in Geneva from 27 February to 17 March 1989. He
urged States parties to meet their financial obligations in order to allow the
Committee to carry ~ut its important task of combating the scourge of racial
discrimination.

28. The extension by one week of the Committee's thirty-seventh session, which had
been held from 7 August to 1 September 1989, had enabled tte Committee to consider
a large number of pending reports. Nevertheless, at the close of the session,
there had still been a large number of reports pending consideration. During that
session the Committee had also considered the question of overdue reports and
decided to request the General Assembly to take appropriate measures and to urge
the States parties concerned to submit their overdue reports as required under
article 9 of the Convention as soon as possible. It had also authorized its
Chairman to address personal letters, on behalf of the Committee, to the Ministers
for F,~reign Affairs of States parties to which 10 or more reminders had so far been
addressed and to urge them to submit their overdue reports as soon as possible. In
that connection, the Committee had noted that there was often a correspondence
between non-payment of assessed contributions and non-submission of periodic
reports.

29. In 1990 the Committee on the Elimination of Racial Discrimination would
commemorate its twentieth anniversary. For that event, the Committee had decided,
subject to the availability of resources and the approval of the General Assembly
during the current session, to hold a three-week commemorative session in New York
to coincide with the commemoration of the International Day for the Elimination of
Racial Discrimination on 21 March 1990, which would also mark the thirtieth
anniversary of the Sharpeville massacre. The Committee had decided to allocate a
limited number of meetings to a round-table discussion for the evaluation of its
work during its first two decades and to consider ideas for its future work. The
Committee intended to invite all of its former Chairmen, as well as the
representatives of the States parties, the Chairman of the Special Committee
against Apartheid, representatives of non-governmental organizations and
representatives of ILO and UNESCO. The Committee had also invited the States
parties to the Convention to give the widest possible publicity to the work of the
Committee. The views expressed during the commemorative meetings would form the
basis of a pamphlet to be issued by the Centre for Human Rights [01 world-wide
dissemination.

/ ...

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.3
English
Page 9

(Mr. Nyamekye)

30. With regard to the sub-item concerning the status of the International
Convention on the Suppression and Punishment of the Crime of A~artheid, the Third
Committee had before it the report of the Secretary-General on that subject. In
accordance with General Assembly resolution 43/97, the report also included a
section on the implementation of that Convention. A list of the 88 States which
had signed, ratified or acceded to the Convention as at 1 October 1989 was given in
the annex to the report. The Group of Three of the Commission on Human Rights
established under the Convention and composed of the representatives of Ethiopia,
the German Democratic Republic and Mexico, had met at the United Nations Office at
Geneva from 23 to 27 January 1989. It had considered reports submitted since its
1988 session and made a number of recommendations concerning the form and content
of reports and other matters of concern to it. In its resolution 1989/8 of
23 February 1989, the Commission on Human Rights had recommended once again that
all States parties should take full account of the general guidelines laid down by
the Group of Three in 1978 for the submission of reports.

31. Turning to agenda item 105, he noted that one of the most important
contributions of the Charter of the United Nations to international law was the
recognition of the universal character of the right of peoples to
self-determination. On the basis of Article 1 (2) of the Charter, the United
Nations had in its early years set up machinery to assist colonial countries in
their r~alization of the right to self-determination, a right which constituted the
cornerstone of both International Covenants on Human Rights.

32. The General Assembly, as early as 1969, had decided to review annually the
progress achieved in the implementation of resolution VIII of the International
Conference on Human Rights held in Teheran in 1968. Since that time the item had
been considered at 19 sessions of the General Assembly. At its forty-third
session, the Assembly had adopted three resolutions under that agenda item. By
resolution 43/105, it had reaffirmed the universal right of all peoples to
self-determination and requested the Commission on Human Rights to give special
attention to the violation of human rights, especially the right to
self-determination, resulting from foreign military intervention, aggression or
occupa~ion. By resolution 43/106, the Assembly had reaffirmed the legitimacy of
the struggle of peoples for their independence, territorial integrity, national
unity and liberation from colonial domination, a~artheid and foreign occupation by
all available means, including armed struggle. The report of the Secretary-General
prepared pursuant to resolutions 43/105 and 43/106 appeared in document A/44/548,
which was before the Committee.

33. At its forty-third session, the General Assembly had condemned the use of
mercenaries as a means to violate human rights and to impede the exercise of the
right of peoples to self-determination. At its forty-fifth session, the Commission
on Human Rights had approved six resolutions relating to the question of Western
Sahara (resolution 1989/18), the situation in Kampuchea (resolution 1989/20), the
use of mercenaries (resolution 1989/21), the situation in southern Africa
(resolution 1989/22) and the situation in Afghanistan (resolution 1989/23). He
also pointed out that at its first regular session of 1989, the Economic and Social

I • ....

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.3
English
Page 10

(Mr. NYamekye)

Council, by decision 1989/156, had endorsed Commission on Human Rights resolution
1989/20 and had requested the Secretary-General to continue to monitor closely the
situation in Kampuchea.

34. The Commission on Human Rights had first appointed the Special Rapporteur to
examine the question of the use of mercenaries in resolution 1987/16. In 1988 the
Special Rapporteur had submitted a report to the Commission reviewing the current
state of international law on that subject and outlining a Typology of mercenary
activities. The Commission had then decided to extend his mandate for another two
years and had requested him to submit a preliminary report to the Assembly at its
forty-third session. In that report, Senator Berna1es had described a visit he had
carried out to Angola and analysed acts of mercenarism brought t~ his attention in
southern Africa. The Special Rapporteur's third report, submitted to the
Commission on Human Rights at its forty-fifth session, had focused on a visit to
Nicaragua and had described the position of the Nicaraguan Government with respect
to mercenary activities on its territory. As a follow-up to that mission, the
Special Rapporteur had paid a visit to the United States of America in July 1989,
where he had held talks with the government officials concerned. The l~test

report, now before the Assembly in document A/44/526, gave an account of that visit.

35. The Co-ordinator of the Programme of Action for the Second Decade to Combat
Racism and Racial Discrimination was determined to pursue his efforts to promote
concerted international action for the eradication of racism and racial
discrimination. In spite of the impressive achievements of the United Nations in
the area of self-determination and respect for human rights and fundamental
freedoms, there was a need for continued and increasing vigilance in the struggle
against racism and racial discrimination and, especially, against apartheid. In
that respect, the Co-ordinator was sure that he could rely on the support and
co-operation of the international community.

36. Mr. BLANC (France), speaking on behalf of the twelve States members of the
European Community, said that the struggle against racism and racial discrimination
would end only when those intolerable scourges, which were impossible to reconcile
with the ideals of freedom and democracy, were completely eliminated. The
Community had passed laws and regulations to support the efforts of the
international community to that end. Such action was, of course, insufficient,
because it was also necessary to ensure that the laws and complementary measures
were fully implemented, particularly in the areas of education and information.

37. The United Nations played an essential role in making countries aware of the
horror of racism and in establishing the legal instruments and international
machinery required for its elimination. The will of the international community
had been clearly demonstrated in its proclamation, by consensus, of the Second
Decade to Combat Racism and Racial Discrimination and the corresponding Programme
of Action. The Twelve welcomed that consensus and were determined to do everything
possible to ensure that it was maintained.

/ ...

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.3
English
Page 11

(Mr. Blanc, France)

38. The Secretary-General's reports in that connection provided exhaustive details
of the pertinent activities of United Nations organs and the specialized agencies,
as well as of non-governmental organizations. The European Community accorded
priority to both basic and continuing education and information activities because
they constituted an essential extension of legislative action: it therefore
endorsed the world public information campaign, during which special attention
would be devoted to the struggle against racial discrimination. Efforts to
facilitate the elaboration of effective norms and recourse procedures for victims
of racism were also important. The Twelve also shared the Secretary-General's view
of the importance of co-ordinating activities for the Second Decade and fully
endorsed the statement by the Deputy Director of the Centre for Human Rights
concerning the need to strengthen such co-ordination.

39. Although racial discrimination was a world-wide phenomenon, the case of South
Africa was a special one, since in that country racism existed not in spite of but
by virtue of the law, in an institutionalized and systematic form. The European
Community was deeply concerned by the lack of progress in abolishing apartheid and
deplored the continued application of restrictive measures against many
organizations involved in the peaceful struggle against apartheid, the detentions
of members of the clergy and trade unions and the sufferings of innocent men, women
and children. That situation could only serve further to aggravate relations
between the Community and South Africa. The Twelve took note with interest of the
electoral promises made by the new President, Mr. de Klerk, and urged him to carry
out his expressed intention of abolishing apartheid: the system was not
susceptible to reform and must be completely eliminated, not by violence but
through dialogue, under conditions which the new Government was responsible for
creating. However, no dialogue would be possible until the state of emergency was
lifted, the African National Congress, the Pan Africanist Congress and other
political parties were legalized and Nelson Mandela and the other political
prisoners were set free.

40. The Earopean Community spared no effort to help the victims of apartheid and
had, since 1986, funded 287 projects for basic and continuing dducation, social and
humanitarian assistance and legal aid, amounting to a total of 74.4 million
European Currency Units (ECUs), equivalent to $89.28 million. In that context, the
Twelve were concerned by the difficulties in receiving the necessary funds which
might be encountered by the organizations responsible for carrying out those
projects as a result of the recent entry into force in South Africa of restrictive
legislation in that connection. The Community also provided assistance to
countries neighbouring South Africa: under the third Lome Convention, the
equivalent of ECU 1,600 million, i.e., $1,800 million, had been allocated directly
to the Southern African Development Co-ordination Conference for transport,
infrastructure, agriculture and food security programmes.

41. The European Community also intended to persist in its efforts to persuade and
to exert pressure on the South African authorities. To that end, it had in 1985
adopted a series of restrictive measures against South Africa, which were
complemented in 1986 by the prohibition both of further investments in that country

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.3
English
Page 12

and of imports of iron, steftl and krugerrands. In 1985, the code 01 conduct for
the Communi ty I S trl'lnsnational corporations with branches in South A£ r .ll~a had hean
updated and strengthened, and new provisions had been introduced t.o promote the
activities oC independent trade unions oC black workers.

42. The International Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Racial
Discrimination, to which l2fi States were parties, was one of the Illost import.ant
international instruments in the field of human rights. The Twelve hoped thnt
those States which had !lot yet acceded to the r.onvention would du so UB soon liB

possible. The Committee on the Elimination of Racial Uiscriminnt.ion, whose tnek it
WAS to ensure that th~ Convention was implemented, had for several years faced
seriouG financ)ial difficulties which hampered the effective discharge of its
functions. The European Community considered it paradoxical that, on the one hand,
nIl the States parties to the Convention were d~ one in condemning racial
discrimination while, on the other hand, the body responsible fot' ensur.ing itH
implementation was unable to function for want oC the necessary resources. The
situation WAS rendered even less acceptable by the! fact that the outstAnding numa
represented, with fare except.!ons, an imdgniCicant burden COJ: I.hl:1 St.ates
concernod. The United Nations was rosponsible for ensuring that the financial
dirrlcllltJes of the Committee and other bodies established under ~onventions be
settled appropriately. Uutil such time as the matter was solved, t.he Communit.y
urged thos~ StAteR parties whose contributionR remained outstand.Lng to fulfil their
financial obligations at the earliest opportunity. In that connection, it waR
regrettable thAt the Secretary-General's report on the financial ~J.tuation of the
Committee And possible administrative and legal measures for improving that
situation, as requested in General Assembly resolution 43/96, was unavnilable.

43. With respect to agenda item 105, the right to self-det~rminQtionwaG a right
of peoples rather t.hnn of States and applied to all peopLeR without d.Lst.in(~tiun.

'rhe Twel'/e were committed to ensure universal enjoyment or that rJ.ght and aCUrmed
th~lr determination to prnmot~ it., as they had done in th~ peAt.

44. It. WAS f\ matter of deep concern that there were st i 11 many Id t.llfltlonll ill which
peoples continued to be deprived of their right to self-determinRtion. The efforts
of t.he Urd led NationB and the Secretary-General to l)Orrsclt. that si tuatlun WBrH
In"dnbl~, nnd it. WAS t.o be hoped t.hat. t.h~y would soon bA c:rnwned with /;\lc:c:eRA.

4!>. Wit.h regard to Western Snhnrn, t.he Twelve welcomed t.he pOAitivp. T:lHq1Onl:le of
the interested parties to the peace proposals of the Secretary-Uerl(H"al. 1 t wns to
be hoped t.hAt: t.he plnn whic.h hI'! hf\d slIbmitted wOllld bo lmplemen\.f!f.I wit.hollt. de:! Ay in
oI'det" thnt n referendum might be hold for the self··c1etarminnt.i.oTl or t.ho l'.errH.ory,
under Unit.nc1 Nl.lti.onH CHu.;picp.B. They nlso hoped that: co-operatloll I>,ithln tht1
frtunework of the Arab Mnghreb Unlon would facilitatfl those effortB and pl'cpa.rn the
way [or f\ jllst.. and laAt.ln rJ solution of the conflict. The Twelvf! hill] t.ilkFJIl not.t1
wit.h grp.nt. int.f1rAst. of t.he me£!ting bot.wAfln the King of Mnro(;co onc! I:.Iw

representati.ves of Frente t'OLTSARIO and hoped that the neqotiat..ioIlH miqht cont.inue.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.3
Engl lah
Page 13

(M.f • Plane I. Franc,)

46. With respect to southern Africa, the Community supported efforts to bring
about t.he independence of NMlibia, on the basis of Security Coundl resolution
435 (1978), and welcomed the measures which had been taken since 1 April 1989. It
also endorsed the process of reconciliation in Angola and Mozambique.

47. The Community, which had expressed its satisfaction at the withdrawal of
Soviet forces from Afghanistan, was concerned by the continuation of the conflict
in that country and believed that only a comprehensive political solution could
quarantee the existence of a non-a1i9ned, independent and democratic Af9hanistan
and create the conditions for a voluntary return of refugees. ~l] Afghan parties
must work for the establishment of a fully representative Government. through An act.
of genuine self-determination.

48. As for Rarnpuchea, the Twelve reaffirmed their conviction that only 8

comprehensive solution could be of lasting effect. They therefure urged all
parties to strive for national reconciliation and to make on addit.iona1 effort to
attain a political agreement.

49. In the Middle East, the situation in the occupied territorie~ had grown even
worse and the number of dead and wounded and the suffering of the popUlation we~e

mounting steadily. The repressive measures imposed by Israel were making it AVfln
more difficult to arrive at a peaceful settlement, which required recognition of
the ri9ht of all States in the region,. including Israel, to security within
recognized, guaranteed borders and the right of all peoples or the region,
including the Palestinian people. to JUBtice and self-determination. The Twelve
viewed as very positive the decisions taken by the Palestine National Council, as
supported by the Arab aummit held at Casablanca. They believed that the Israeli
proposal for elections in the occupied territories could contribute to the pe~ce

process, provided that such elections formed part of a comprehensive solution base~

on Security Council resolutions 242 and 338 and on the principle of "land for
peace l

', and were also used to settle the issue of East Jerusalem, and that no
solution was ruled out in the negot.iations. The Twelve aho viewed EgypL' li

contribution, as expressed in the la points put forward by President Mubarak, as
very positive.

50. The Twelve believed that the exercise of the right or seH-·determination was a
continuing process. not an isolated event. Peoples must be able tu chouse thei.
governments and social systems freely. as provided in the International Covennnts.
They must be Rb1e to change their system, if they so desired. without. t.he thrf'Rt of
outside intervention, 0 coup d 'etat or the proclMlation of a stot€'! of emergenc:y.
Accordingly, all individuah must be able to exel'cise the other rights eSlablished
by the Covenants I freedom oC opinion and expression. the right of pence[u],
assembly, freedom of associat.ion, the right to take part in t.he conduct of public
affairs, either directly or through freely chosen representalivflR. ~nd the right to
vote for the candidate of their choice and to be elected at genuine periodic
elections.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.3
English
Page 14

51. The United Nations had a fundamental role to play in that RU'uggle and must
intervene whenever the right of self-determination was violated, in order to hasten
its universal attainment. The Twelve therefore hoped that the work oC the 'fhird
Committee at the current session would reflect a common approach on the part of
Member States which would allow constructive action to be taken in Cavour of that
cause, which was essential to the progress of world peace.

52. M.t.L-.!iARlAZ1. (Morocco) said that the issues which the Third Committee waG
addressing as usual - racism and racial discrimination, apA~~Qia and the right of
all peoples of the world to self-determination - had been the concern of the
international community for decades, which was why it had adopted <:onventions and
declarations on the subject, proclaimed international decades and held numerous
international conferences and seminars. At the current session, debates were being
held in a hopeful and almost optimistic atmosphere as a result of the favourable
trend in international relations, which seemed to be making possihlp. whnt hnd for
many decades seemed impossible.

53. The recent adoption by the General Assembly, by an impressive majority, of a
resolution on the .In-t.l.f..o.c1.Ah confirmed that .... iew, but also the grovit.y of the
situation created by Israeli policies. World pUblic opinion no longer remainod
indifferent to the repression oC the civilian popUlation of the occupied
Palestinian territories, of children who, with stone in hand, had dared to riae up
against soldiers armed to the teeth to,demand their most basic rights. The
situation had become so alarming that participants in a seminar on thoRe children
held in May 1989 near Jerusalem had wondered whether they would be the "pilot
generation" of El future PalE>stinian State or the "lost generation". The unsettled
liCe of those children, some of whom were not yet 10 years old, was aIHo having a
proCound impact on Palestinlan ll'aditions and the family unit, where the r-luLhodty
of the father was being weakened or challenged.

54. The same repression and flagrant human rights violatior.s won) taking plrwe in
Sout.h Africa, where t.he majorit.y of t.he population was suffering under the wor'st of
all policiesl aparthQj~. Changes were takihg place, however. Aa the Ministor for
Foreign Affairs of Morocco had told the General Assambly, the world was witnessing
the c r)l1apse of the last bastion of colonialif'lm in Afr lca, Colluwj ng the launching
on 1 April 1989 of the pro(~ess envisaged in the plan fol' the indnpulIc.1ellce oC
Nrunlbin embodied in :-iecurH.y Council rosolution 435 (lC)70). Mo,(){~cO, which hild
always supported the Nrunibian people and SWAPO, welcomed that prosppct. ancl hoped
fervently t.hRt. the terrible sUfferingR of t.he South African I?eoplf' wr'l'f' ,IIAD
nead ng an end.

55. South African intclloctunlG ond certain membero of tho ruliuq clnfi(l npponred
to hRve finiilly understood t.hRt ~p.~.rthe.1r.l muM. go. The rJf~ljf\l Arrilil:~ CommiHHil)l\ of
the South African Government had also recognized the need to draft. Cl charter of
citizens I rights bafled ou the United Nations Covonants and eVHlI 1.11111. Blwh a cllarttH'
would bl! meaningless without the introduction of univf!nwl GU[[, ilq{!, 'I'hnt progress
was neither satisfact.ory nor rapid, h')wever, and thE! internatiollilJ t:l.~mmunity IIhou1d
remain vigilRnt and demand thRt the South African people legRin I.heir rllgnity and
full rights.

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.3
Engliah
Page 15

(Mrs. War.a.i. Morocco)

56. Racism was a scourge which knew no bordera and would not disappear, de.pite
all the initiatives tftken under the two Decades proclaimed by the United Nationa.
It often manife8ted itself where it was least expectedl in political differences,
in electoral campaigns, in economic cris.l, in selfish individualilm, in the
determination to hang on to power and perpetuat8 injustice. The struggle againat
that soourge, in which UNESCO, by mi ••ion and vocation, could continue to play a
fundamental role through it. studiea on the impact of looial, economic and cultural
factors on racist activities, must therefore be intensified. The alarming
situation faced by the Committee on the Elimination of Racial Discrimination
threatened the tirst oversight mechanism established by the General Assembly in the
fight against racism, however. It would be unforgivable if CERD's activities were
discontinued for lack of funds, when racism caused as many deaths as drug. and
AIDS, if not more.

57. More than ever, vigilance was needed in the face of a phenomenon which
appeared to manifest itselt wherever there were points of weakness, vulnerability
or crisi.. indigenous population., minorities and, above all, migrant workers were
ideal targets for racism. The international community must protect itself and put
an end to that scourge, wherever it occurred, by teaching children that human
beings were born free and equal and must enjoy their rights and assume their
obligations, whatever their race, sex, colour or religion.

58. Mr. RAVEN (United Kingdom), referring to agenda item 100 and documont
A/44/59S, said that because of a bureaucratic error the United Kingdom contribution
to the work of the Committee on the Elimination of Racial Discrimination had not
been paid with the custory promptness. He was pleased to announce that it had now
been paid through the Bank of England.

The meeting r088 at 5.10 p.m.

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library




